MANDATORY HEALTHCARE AND DAILY BENEFITS INSURANCE

GENERAL INSURANCE CONDITIONS (GIC) UNDER THE KVG.

Version 2020, valid as of 1 January 2020



Comments

These General Insurance Conditions are valid for the following insurers:

- SWICA Healthcare Insurance Ltd, Römerstrasse 38, 8400 Winterthur
- PROVITA Gesundheitsversicherung AG, Römerstrasse 38, 8400 Winterthur

To enhance readability, only the masculine form has been used for all references to people.

Table of contents

I General provisions	Page
Art. 1 Underlying principles	4
Art. 2 Scope of cover	4
Art. 3 Legal basis	4
Art. 4 Insurer	4
Art. 5 Association membership	4
II Forms of insurance	
Art. 6 General	4
Titt o General	1
III Insurance relationship	
Art. 7 Insured persons	4
Art. 8 Enrolment conditions	4
Art. 9 Legal effect of signing the application form	4
Art. 10 Beginning of insurance	4
Art. 11 Switch involving special forms of insurance	4
Art. 12 Change of residence	4
Art. 13 Suspension of accident cover	5
Art. 14 Suspension of insurance	5
Art. 15 End of insurance	5
Art. 16 Change of insurer	5
IV Benefits	
Art. 17 Insured benefits	5
Art. 18 Subsidiarity	6
V Premiums and co-payments	
Art. 19 Premiums	6
Art. 20 Co-payment/benefit reimbursement	6
Art. 21 Late payment	6
VI Rights and obligations	
Art. 22 Obligation to notify, inform and cooperate	6
Art. 23 Obligation to minimise damage	6
Art. 24 Payment details	7
Art. 25 Reimbursement	7
Art. 26 Pledging and assignment	7
Art. 27 Insured person's card	7
VII Data protection and non-disclosure obligation	
Art. 28 Data protection	7
Art. 29 Non-disclosure obligation	7
VIII Administration of justice	
Art. 30 Administration of justice	7
IX Miscellaneous provisions	
Art. 31 Notifications and written form	7
Art. 32 Digital services	7
Art. 33 Technicalities	7
Art. 34 Entry into force	8
Glossary	9

I General provisions

Art. 1 Underlying principles

- These GIC and any Supplementary Insurance Conditions that apply are not conclusive and merely supplement the statutory provisions.
- 2. They apply to healthcare and daily benefits insurance under the KVG.

Art. 2 Scope of cover

Healthcare insurance complies with the federal government's legal provisions and covers the cost of diagnosing and treating illness, maternity as well as accident-related conditions, provided that accident cover has not been suspended. The insurance covers the statutory benefits.

Daily benefits insurance covers a person's lost earnings by taking into account the federal government's legal provisions and the Supplementary Insurance Conditions.

Art. 3 Legal basis

The legal basis of healthcare insurance and daily benefits insurance is the current Federal Health Insurance Act (KVG) and the Federal Act on the General Part of the Social Insurance Law (ATSG), the respective implementation provisions, the GIC, and any Supplementary Insurance Conditions that may apply.

Art. 4 Insurer

- 1. The GIC apply to the following insurers:
 - SWICA Healthcare Insurance Ltd, Römerstrasse 38, 8400 Winterthur
 - PROVITA Gesundheitsversicherung AG, Römerstrasse 38, 8400
 Winterthur

They are hereinafter referred to individually and jointly as "Insurer".

- The respective Insurer is indicated in the policy. This Insurer is responsible for managing the insurance and providing insurance benefits.
- 3. PROVITA Gesundheitsversicherung AG belongs to SWICA Healthcare Organisation. SWICA Healthcare Insurance Ltd has the legal right to carry out all actions in the name and on behalf of PROVITA Gesundheitsversicherung AG.

Art. 5 Association membership

Anyone insured with SWICA in accordance with social healthcare provisions is also a member of the SWICA Healthcare Organisation. Membership ends when the insurance ends or based on a request to terminate the insured person's membership.

II Forms of insurance

Art. 6 General

- The Insurer provides ordinary healthcare insurance and special forms of insurance. Special forms of insurance include plans that offer a limited choice of service provider and plans that offer a selectable annual excess.
- 2. For voluntary daily benefits insurance under the KVG, special supplementary conditions apply.
- 3. The selectable excess amounts are defined in the provisions of the κvv
- 4. Insurance plans with limited choice of service provider are subject to special Supplementary Insurance Conditions.
- 5. Contrary provisions in the Supplementary Insurance Conditions take precedence over those of the GIC.

III Insurance relationship

Art. 7 Insured persons

The statutory provisions define the group of persons who are subject to the insurance obligation. The insurance covers the individuals mentioned in the policy.

Art. 8 Enrolment conditions

- Enrolment requires a written declaration. Persons unable to act of their own accord must have a legal representative sign the declaration on their behalf. The questions on the application must be answered fully and truthfully. All the documents necessary for enrolment in the insurance must be submitted to the Insurer.
- 2. Enrolment in healthcare insurance is possible only if the same type of cover is not in effect with another insurer at the same time.

Art. 9 Legal effect of signing the application form

With the written statement on enrolment, the insured person acknowledges these GIC and the Supplementary Insurance Conditions of the Insurer.

Art. 10 Beginning of insurance

- The beginning of the insurance is defined by the statutory provisions. The insurance must start within three months from when the person was born or became a Swiss resident, provided that the insurance application was submitted in writing to the Insurer during this period. In this case, the insurance starts on the date of the birth or when the person took up residence in Switzerland.
- 2. The Insurer sends the insured person a policy that has the start date of the insurance.
- 3. If enrolment is delayed, the insurance starts on the enrolment date, i.e. at the earliest on the date when the insurance application reaches the Insurer. In this case, insurance benefits are due only as of the enrolment date. The Insurer can charge additional premiums for delays that are not exempt under statutory provisions.
- 4. The premiums are due when the insurance begins. If the insurance relationship begins during a calendar month, the premiums apply exactly on that day of the month.

Art. 11 Switch involving special forms of insurance

- 1. Switching from ordinary healthcare insurance to a special form of insurance offered by the Insurer is possible at any time to the first day of the following month.
- 2. Switching between special forms of insurance offered by the Insurer is possible only at the beginning of a calendar year as of 31 December and by observing a one-month notice period.
- Choosing a higher excess is possible only at the beginning of a calendar year.
- 4. Choosing a lower excess to the beginning of a calendar year is possible only as of 31 December and by observing a one-month notice

Art. 12 Change of residence

- Any change of address and relocation of civil-law residence must be notified to the Insurer within 30 days. A change of residence that must be notified also includes cases where the person's primary place of activity is moved to a care centre or an institution (e.g. a treatment centre). The insured person bears any disadvantages from violations of the notification obligation.
- 2. If a change of residence results in a change of premium, the new premium comes into effect on the month closest to the date of the change of residence. In the absence of such a date, the Insurer adjusts the premium to the beginning of the month closest to the date of the address change notification.
- If the address change is notified too late, the Insurer will invoice the additional premium that was incurred. The premium difference is not refunded.
- 4. A change of premium due to a change of residence does not result in the right to switch Insurers. If the special form of insurance under the current insurance policy is unavailable at the new place of residence, the person will need to switch to another insurance model from the Insurer.

Art. 13 Suspension of accident cover

- 1. Insured persons who are mandatorily (UVG) covered for accident risks can have their accident cover suspended. The Insurer suspends such cover at the insured person's request if there is proof that occupational and non-occupational accident cover under the UVG is fully in effect. In this case, the premium is adjusted accordingly. Suspension of accident cover requires the insured person's written request and begins no earlier than on the day following the day when the application reaches the Insurer, but not retroactively. If the insurance begins during a month, the premium is adjusted exactly to that day.
- 2. Under the KVG, accident-related conditions are insured as soon as accident cover under the UVG ends fully or partially.
- 3. The insured person must notify the Insurer within 30 days if he discontinues mandatory accident insurance under the UVG. Accident cover under mandatory healthcare insurance is reinstated as soon as cover under the UVG ends. The obligation to pay premiums applies as of the first day after UVG cover ends.

Art. 14 Suspension of insurance

- Persons who are subject to military insurance for more than 60 consecutive days are exempt from the obligation to pay premiums from the date when the obligation begins if they notify the Insurer at least eight weeks before the start date. If this deadline is not observed, the Insurer will stop charging premiums from the next possible date, at the latest eight weeks after the notification.
- 2. Daily benefits insurance cannot be suspended.

Art. 15 End of insurance

- 1. The insurance ends if the insured person
 - changes to another insurance company
 - dies
 - relocates abroad, provided that mandatory insurance under the bilateral agreements with the EU/EFTA is in effect.
 - discontinues his civil-law residence in the Insurer's area of activity
 - is no longer subject to the statutory insurance obligation
- 2. The insured person (or his heirs) must notify the Insurer in writing if the insurance relationship is terminated.

Art. 16 Change of insurer

- 1. The insured person can switch from the Insurer to another insurance company as of 30 June and 31 December, or as of 31 December in the case of other forms of insurance, by giving three-months written notice.
- When notified of a new premium, the insured person can switch to another insurance company to the end of the month prior to the month for which the new premium applies and by observing a onemonth notice period.
- 3. The termination or change of insurer is valid only if notice was given in writing by the given deadline. For termination to be valid, the notice must reach the Insurer on the last workday before the notice period ends (stamp date serves as reference date).
- 4. The change comes into effect only once the new insurer's confirmation of cover reaches the current insurer.
- Termination has no effect if outstanding premiums, co-payments, default interest, and debt collection fees remain unpaid when the notice period ends.
- 6. The insurance relationship ends once the Insurer has given written
- 7. No claims can be brought against the Insurer after the insurance has ended.
- 8. Insured persons who leave the plan owe premiums, co-payments and fees until the insurance ends.

9. Excess and deductible amounts that have been applied during the year will be offset for persons who enrol in the insurance during that year. In this case, the insured person must submit the respective documents of the previous insurer.

IV Benefits

Art. 17 Insured benefits

- The Insurer covers the statutorily prescribed insurance benefits in accordance with the terms laid out in these GIC. The Insurer provides the same benefits for accident-related conditions as for illnesses.
- 2. Entitlement to benefits arises once the insurance begins and remains in effect for as long as cover is in effect. Entitlement to benefits does not apply to costs incurred after the insurance ends (also not for claims pending at that time). The date of treatment or insured benefits claim is decisive for determining eligibility for benefit entitlement.
- 3. Whenever benefits are claimed, the Insurer must be provided with detailed invoices and cover note requests, or with confirmation of incapacity for work in connection with claims for daily benefits for up to five years after the invoice date. Once this period ends, all entitlement to benefits ends also (limitation period under Art. 24 ATSG). As a rule, the invoices and documents must be submitted in German, French, Italian, or English. For invoices in other languages, a translation into one of the languages mentioned above by an official translation agency must be included.
- 4. The Insurer will cover the cost of such services if efficacy, appropriateness, and cost-effectiveness are given. Services are deemed to be cost-effective if they address solely what is in the insured person's interest and necessary for the treatment.
- 5. The Insurer covers the services of providers recognised under the KVG. This includes comprehensive examinations and treatments administered to either inpatients or outpatients by the following recognised providers:
 - Doctors, pharmacists, chiropractors and midwives
 - Persons who provide services on the instruction of a doctor or chiropractor, such as physiotherapists, occupational therapists, nurses, speech therapists, nutritionists, and Spitex organisations
 - Laboratories, places to deposit substances and objects, as well as hospitals, maternity clinics, nursing homes, spas, and transport and rescue companies
- 6. The insured person can freely choose from among the recognised providers of outpatient treatment. The Insurer covers the cost at maximum at the rate valid at the insured person's place of residence or work or in the vicinity thereof.
- 7. Medications are covered if prescribed by a doctor or chiropractor and they are on the special medicines list (SL) or the drug formulary with tariff (ALT). Prescribed medication must comply with the authorised indication and be applied as specified.
- 8. For inpatient treatment, the insured person can choose any hospital on a canton's list. However, the costs are covered at maximum at the rate valid for the canton of residence.
- If the service provider is used for medical reasons in connection with outpatient or inpatient treatment, the costs are covered at the rate valid for this service provider.
- 10. For insured persons who stay abroad temporarily, the Insurer in principle covers only the cost of emergency treatment.

- 11. In particular, the Insurer does not provide benefits (in Pt. [6] the benefit is granted but deferred):
 - 1. for non-authorised service providers,
 - 2. for examinations and treatments whose efficacy, appropriatness, and cost-effectiveness is not given,
 - 3. for which there are no detailed invoices,
 - 4. if the person refuses to be seen by a medical examiner,
 - 5. for the duration of the delay in case of late enrolment,
 - 6. for the duration of a benefits delay until full payment of all outstanding amounts in statutorily defined cases.
- 12. The Insurer will reclaim benefits that were paid by mistake or for wrongful reasons.

Art. 18 Subsidiarity

- The insured person must notify the Insurer about the benefit obligations of or when receiving benefits from other insurance companies or liable parties if the Insurer is liable for benefits for the same insurance case.
- 2. If the Insurer pays an advance to the insured person in connection with an insurance case for which a third party is liable, the Insurer covers the insured person's claims up to the amount this third party has paid in accordance with legal provisions at the time of the event. The Insurer then reclaims this amount from the third party. This does not apply to the excess and deductible and to other non-statutory benefits that the insured person himself must reclaim from the third party.

V Premiums and co-payments

Art. 19 Premiums

- 1. The premiums are set based on the rates approved by the supervisory authority. The premiums are tiered by age group and region.
- The respective premium, which is due at least one month in advance, is shown in the insurance policy. By special agreement, it can be paid every two months, every three months, every six months, or annually.
- 3. In the month of enrolment, the premium is due on the exact day on which the insurance begins. In the month on which the person withdraws from the insurance or dies, no further premiums are owed after the day of withdrawal or death, and any amounts that were paid for the time after this date are reimbursed.
- 4. The Insurer invoices the premiums in Swiss francs. Amounts are reimbursed only in Swiss francs. The applicable payment periods are shown in the premium invoice. The Insurer defines the terms and conditions that apply in this case.

Art. 20 Co-payment/benefit reimbursement

The insured person participates in the cost of the benefits being claimed by making a co-payment, unless an exception applies by law. This co-payment breaks down into a fixed annual contributions (excess) and a percentage (deductible) of the amount being claimed. In statutorily prescribed cases, a per-day contribution as defined by the Federal Council is due in the case of hospitalisation.

- The maximum annual deductible, the excess levels, and the hospitalisation contribution are calculated based on legal provisions.
- The decisive factor in determining the excess and deductible is the date of the treatment or the time when the insured benefit is claimed.
- 3. In maternity cases, no co-payments apply to examinations and treatments as defined in the implementation provisions. Similarly, no co-payments apply between the thirteenth week of pregnancy and the eighth week after confinement in cases involving healthcare benefits in accordance with Art. 25 and 25 a KVG.
- The deductible for an original medicine for which a generic one is also available may be higher and can exceed the limit as defined by law.

- 5. Co-payments are invoiced in Swiss francs. The applicable payment periods are shown in the benefit statement. The Insurer defines the terms and conditions that apply in this case.
- 6. Benefits and services the insured person has paid for are refunded in Swiss francs.

Art. 21 Late payment

- 1. Insured persons who fail to pay the premiums and co-payments despite a written reminder will receive a payment request from the Insurer and be given a 30-day extension by which to settle the matter. If the insured person fails to pay the outstanding premiums, co-payments, and interest on arrears (5% of the outstanding premium) despite the payment request, the Insurer will initiate debt collection proceedings. The Insurer discloses the name of the insured person against whom debt collection proceedings have been initiated to the cantonal authorities at their request.
- 2. The cost of the debt collection proceedings are passed on to the insured person. In addition, a reasonable processing fee (reminder and collection fees) can be applied to expenses that would not have been incurred if payment had been made on time.
- 3. A fee can be applied to amounts due under an instalment plan in effect for settling an outstanding amount.

VI Rights and obligations

Art. 22 Obligation to notify, inform and cooperate

- The insured person must provide the Insurer with the information and documents it needs to clarify its obligations and whether benefits entitlement is given, and to calculate the premiums and benefits.
 The insured person is aware that the Insurer is authorised, based on statutory provisions, to view the documents of other insurance companies, service providers and the authorities and to process this information.
- If another social insurer is liable for the statutory benefits, the insured person must claim the amount from that insurer. If the insured person refuses to file such a claim, the Insurer can use its right to file claims.
- 3. The insured person must notify the Insurer's organisational unit as shown on the insurance policy about any change in his personal situation that affects the insurance relationship (e.g. changes concerning the marital status, legal representative, premium payer, place of residence, etc.) within one month. The insured person bears any disadvantages from violations of the notification obligation. The Insurer can demand payment of missing premiums owed because of late notification. The Insurer is under no obligation to refund any premium credits.
- 4. The insured person must inform the Insurer within 20 days if he moves his place of residence for a justified reason to a location outside of Insurer's area of activity (in Switzerland or abroad). If the insured person omits such notification by his own fault, the Insurer will terminate the insurance.

Art. 23 Obligation to minimise damage

- 1. In cases involving illness, maternity, or the effects of an accident, the insured person must take all the necessary steps to promote recovery and abstain from any actions that could prevent or delay recovery. The insured person must follow the recognised treating service provider's instructions in connection with all treatments and examinations that are administered. The insured person may not cause the service provider to perform any unnecessary and uneconomical treatments, examinations or clarifications. Benefits can be reduced or denied if the insured person jeopardises his recovery or refuses to cooperate with the Insurer.
- 2. The Insurer can demand that the insured person undergoes an examination by a medical examiner or doctor of its choice at the Insurer's expense.

Art. 24 Payment details

- 1. The insured person must provide the Insurer with the payment details of a bank or postal account in Switzerland for cashless reimbursements. Payments made to this account are deemed to have settled the matter. If the absence of such payment details, the Insurer's payments are deemed to have been made when sent to the most recently known address of the insured person. In such a case, the Insurer has the right to apply an expense contribution per payment. Customers residing outside of Switzerland can provide the account details of a bank in their country of residence.
- 2. The Insurer always issues its payments in Swiss francs. In the case of an account with a financial institution domiciled abroad, the insured person is liable for all expenses and fees the foreign bank charges. The same applies when insured persons residing abroad make payments to the Insurer from an account with a foreign financial institution.

Art. 25 Reimbursement

The insured person must reimburse the Insurer any benefits and other monetary advantages (e.g. reimbursements/premium discounts) that he obtained wrongfully, irrespective of whether they were paid to him or a third party (e.g. a doctor or hospital).

Art. 26 Pledging and assignment

The insured person is not permitted to pledge or assign any claims against the Insurer to a third party. Any assignment or pledge is invalid. This does not apply to exceptions under the law.

Art. 27 Insured person's card

- 1. The insured person receives an insured person's card, which he can use as a form of ID for the service providers. Provided that applicable contracts are on file, the card also authorises the person to use services such as filling prescribed and authorised medication from a pharmacy without paying for it in cash. The card also makes it possible to charge medically necessary treatment by public service providers in the EU/EFTA area to the Insurer.
- Presenting the insured person's card to a hospital in Switzerland does not result in a legally binding guarantee that the costs will be covered.
- 3. The insured person's card is valid for as long as insurance cover is in effect. It may not be lent out, transferred, or made available to a third party. The Insurer must be notified immediately if the insured person loses or misplaces the card. The insured person must destroy the card immediately if insurance cover ceases to be valid.
- 4. If the insured person intentionally misuses the card, the cardholder is liable for any damage caused to the Insurer. In particular, wrongfully obtained insurance benefits must be reimbursed to the Insurer and any fees incurred in this connection must be paid.

VII Data protection and non-disclosure obligation

Art. 28 Data protection

- 1. The measures taken to protect data are laid out in the Federal Act on the General Part of the Social Insurance Law (ATSG), the Federal Health Insurance Act (KVG), and the Data Protection Act (DSG).
- 2. SWICA Healthcare Organisation records all its calls to and from the following areas for the purpose of securing proof and assuring quality, and for training purposes:
 - santé24
 - the helpline abroad
 - the SWICA Customer Service 24/7 outside of standard office hours
- 3. The recordings are stored for three months (Customer Service 24/7), one year (helpline abroad) or ten years (santé24) and then deleted at the end of the respective period.

Art. 29 Non-disclosure obligation

The Insurer's employees are subject to the statutory non-disclosure obligation.

VIII Administration of justice

Art. 30 Administration of justice

- If the insured person disagrees with the Insurer's decision, he can
 ask the Insurer to issue a written and substantiated administrative
 order with information on legal remedies within 30 days.
- 2. An appeal can be lodged in writing against the Insurer's administrative order at the Insurer's Head Office within 30 days from when the order was issued. The appeal must include the reasons.
- 3. Appeal decisions by the Insurer can be challenged at the competent cantonal insurance court within 30 days after the appeal under administrative law was lodged. The cantonal insurance court can be petitioned if the Insurer does not issue an administrative order or appeal decision at the affected person's request.
- 4. Decisions by the insurance court can be challenged in the Federal Supreme Court within 30 days in accordance with the Federal Supreme Court Act.
- 5. The administrative order or the appeal decision has legal effect once the appeal period ends or the judgement becomes final.

IX Miscellaneous provisions

Art. 31 Notifications and written form

- All of the insured person's notifications and documents relating to benefit entitlement (including legally valid signature of the insured person or his statutory representative) must be addressed to the Insurer in writing. For some notifications, the Insurer can permit also email and other forms of electronic communications, to the extent permissible by law. Announcements by the Insurer that affect the insurance relationship are communicated publicly in legally binding form in circulars, on the website, in customer publications, or in other suitable ways.
- All the Insurer's notifications are legally valid when sent to the most recent contact details the insured person provided to the Insurer. Insured persons who stay abroad for more than three months must provide the Insurer with a postal address in Switzerland to which it can send items.
- 3. The lists and directories mentioned in the GIC or the SIC are available on the Internet (www.swica.ch) or from the Insurer's organisational unit mentioned in the insurance policy. The lists and directories that are valid on the date of the treatment always takes precedence. The Insurer can adjust the lists and directories mentioned in the Supplementary Insurance Conditions every year.
- 4. The term "in writing" as used in these GIC applies by extension also to any electronic notifications the Insurer has deliberately chosen and that are legally permissible.
- 5. The Insurer accepts also qualified electronic signatures instead of handwritten signatures. Such a signature must be based on a qualified certificate from a recognised certification services provider within the meaning of the Federal Law on the Electronic Signature of 18 March 2016 or on other federal legal provisions valid at the time. Contrary statutory or contractual arrangements are reserved.

Art. 32 Digital services

Additional agreements (on offers, rights and obligations, access rights, etc.) apply to the digital services the Insurer makes available. These agreements become binding on the insured person whenever he uses such services, unless other provisions take precedence.

Art. 33 Technicalities

The German version of these GIC is the original version. The French, Italian, and English versions are translations. In case of any discrepancies regarding their content, the German version is authoritative.

Art. 34 Entry into force

These GIC for insurance under the KVG enter into force on 1 January 2020. The SIC are valid from the respective effective date. The Insurer can change the GIC and SIC at any time (subject to the necessary prior approval of the supervisory authority) by informing the insured persons accordingly.

Glossary

Accident

An accident is defined as any damaging, sudden and involuntary injury caused to the human body by an extraordinary external factor, resulting in the impairment of physical, mental, or psychological health, or death.

Agreement on Free Movement of Persons

Agreement on Free Movement of Persons between Switzerland and the EU plus EU member states (citizens of states belonging to the European Free Trade Association [EFTA] are subject to the same provisions regarding the right to free movement).

ATSG

Federal Act on the General Part of the Social Security Law of 6 October 2000

Congenital defects

Congenital defects refers to illnesses that existed already at birth.

Co-payments

The insured person participates in the costs by paying an excess, a deductible, and a hospitalisation contribution. For adults, co-payments break down into the selected annual excess plus a 10%* deductible that applies to costs exceeding the excess amount. In the case of children, the co-payment includes the excess if one was selected, plus a deductible of 10%* of the costs.

The deductible for an original medicine for which a generic one is also available may be higher and can exceed the limit as defined by law.

Co-payments are applied in the following sequence:

- Excess
- Deductible
- Hospitalisation contribution

No co-payments apply to maternity benefits. In the case of nursing care benefits, no co-payments apply as of the thirteenth week of pregnancy and for eight weeks after confinement.

In addition to the co-payment, a contribution as defined by the Federal Council is due in statutorily defined cases involving hospitalisation. If the Insurer pays the invoices of service providers directly, the Insurer charges the insured person the costs it assumed up to the excess limit or up to the deductible amount exceeding the excess. The hospitalisation contribution is invoiced regardless of whether the co-payment limits have been reached. Contrary provisions in contracts between the Insurer and third parties are reserved.

DSG

Swiss Federal Act on Data Protection of 19 June 1992

Emergency

An emergency refers to a situation where immediate treatment must be administered for medical reasons. An emergency generally arises through the sudden and unforeseeable need to administer treatment.

Generic medicines

Successor medication approved by Swissmedic that essentially has the same effect as the original preparation. Generic medicines have the same active ingredients in the same quantity and doses as the original preparation; however, the excipients may vary. Generic medicines can be offered at a lower price because the patent of the original preparation has expired.

GIC

General Insurance Conditions in accordance with the Federal Health Insurance Act (KVG)

Illness

An illness is any impairment of physical or mental health which is not the consequence of an accident and which requires a medical examination or treatment or which results in incapacity for work.

Incapacity for work

Incapacity for work is the full or partial inability to perform work that can be reasonably expected of the person within his job or area of responsibility at the time owing to impaired physical or mental health. For longer periods of incapacity for work, reasonable work in another job or remit must also be considered.

Insurance with limited choice of service provider

An ordinary healthcare insurance plan gives insured persons free choice of authorised service providers when looking for cover for outpatient treatment. With the consent of the Insurer, the insured person can opt for a more affordable form of care, whereby the Insurer limits the choice of service provider. Insurance with limited choice of service provider constitutes a special form of insurance.

KVG

Federal Health Insurance Act of 18 March 1994

KVV

Health Insurance Ordinance of 27 June 1995

Maternity

Maternity refers to pregnancy and confinement as well as the subsequent convalescence of the mother.

UVG

Federal Accident Insurance Act of 20 March 1981

^{*} In the case of some medication on the EDI's list, the deductible can amount to 20%.